
 
MINUTES 

WORK SESSION 
MARCH 30, 2006 

 
 

The Aberdeen Board  of Commissioners met Thursday, March  30, 2006 at 
5:30 p.m. for their regular Work Session.  Members present were Mayor Elizabeth 
Mofield  and  Commissioners  Pat  Ann McMurray,  Robbie  Farrell,  Arthur  Parker, 
Donna  Shannon  and Walter Wright.    Others  in  attendance were  Town Manager 
Bill  Zell,  Planning  Director  Giles  Hopkins,  Town  Clerk  Nancy  Matthews  and 
several citizens with pending request.    
 
  Mayor Mofield called the Work Session to order. 
 
1.  Application  for  Preliminary  Plat  Review  PLP#0601  submitted  by 

Hobbs, Upchurch & Associates for the Bonnie Brook Subdivision. 
   

Planning Director Giles Hopkins reported to the Board that the Bonnie 
Brook Subdivision is located on a 10acre site on North Poplar Street and is 
proposed to have 17 lots for singlefamily dwellings.  He stated the proposed 
street  is  to  have  a 50foot  rightofway,  concrete wedge  curb  and a 4foot 
wide sidewalk adjacent to the curb on both sides of the road and culdesac.   

 
Mr. Hopkins stated the sidewalks, at this point, will not be on Poplar 

Street  because  this  is  DOT  rightofway  unless  DOT  agrees  to  allow 
installation. 

 
There  was  some  discussion  pertaining  to  relocating  the  old  Page 

House that  is currently  situated on  this property.   The developer stated      if 
the Town wants to move this house, then they can have it.   

 
Mr.  Hopkins  recommended  approval  of  the  Preliminary  Plat 

regardless of DOT approval or denial of the sidewalk.  Agenda item as New 
Business. 

 
 
 
 



2.  Application  for  Preliminary  Plat  Review  PLP#0602  submitted  by 
Stafford Land Company for the Sandy Springs Subdivision. 
 

Planning Director Giles Hopkins stated the Sandy Springs Subdivision 
is now at the preliminary plat stage.  He stated the subdivision will contain 
260  singlefamily  lots.    He  stated  the  developer  is making  application  for 
starting Phase I which will consist of 50 lots.  He stated the subdivision will 
have  valley  concrete wedging with  sidewalks  located  on both  sides  of  the 
streets.   He stated that Conditional Use Permit CU#05065 was approved on 
November 14, 2005 by the Town Board. 

 
Mayor  Mofield  had  some  concerns  about  more  of  the  open  spaces 

being on the outside perimeters  instead of  inside the subdivision.  She also 
had  some  concerns  about  adequate  drainage.    Agenda  item  as  New 
Business. 
 

3.  Application  for  Preliminary  Plat Review PLP#0603  submitted  by  FC 
Pinehurst, LLC for the Legacy Lakes Subdivision. 

 
Planning  Director  Hopkins  stated  the  Legacy  Lakes  Subdivision  is 

now  at  the  preliminary  plat  stage.    He  stated  the  sheets  for  the  Board’s 
review show the overall plat which corresponds with CU#0504  which was 
approved  by  the Board  on August  8,  2005.   He  stated  that  the  developers 
have  secured  approval  for  an  easement  from CSX  for  installing  the  sewer 
line.  He also stated an agreement will be placed on the agenda for April 10th 
for consideration pertaining to the railroad easement and also a contract from 
Forrest City  for water/sewer between Town of Aberdeen, Forrest City  and 
the landowners.   

 
Mr.  Hopkins  asked  the  Board  if  they  would  consider  making  this 

subdivision a gated community.  No decision was made on this request.   
Agenda item as New Business. 

 
 4.  Application  for  Site  Plan  Review  SP#0601  submitted  by  Primax 

Properties,  LLC  for  a  restaurant  to  be  located  in  Sandhills  Shopping 
Center in the HC Highway Commercial District. 

 
Planning  Director  Hopkins  stated  that  Primax  Properties,  LLC  has 

submitted  a  site plan  review for part  of Sandhills Shopping Center  (where 
Perry Brothers  Tire was  located)  for  a  proposed  renovation  of  an  existing 



commercial structure.  He stated the plans as submitted also to include major 
façade  improvements,  the  demolition  of  a  secondary  structure  and 
conversion  into  at  least  two  business  locations.    He  stated  a  restaurant  is 
being considered for the back part of this building. 
 

Commissioner  McMurray  wanted  to  know  if  sidewalks  could  be 
placed in front of this building facing US#1.  The representative for Primax 
Properties,  LLC  stated  he  would  contact  DOT  to  see  if  this  would  be 
permissible.   Agenda item as New Business. 

 
 5.  Application  for  Site  Plan  Review  SP#0602  submitted  by  Primax 

Properties, LLC for Starbucks Coffee to be located in the HC Highway 
Commercial District. 

 
Mr. Hopkins stated that Primax Properties, LLC is proposing to build 

a Starbucks Coffee on 1.94 acres directly adjacent  to Aberdeen Commons.  
He  stated  ingress  and  egress  will  be  provided  via  a  fortyfoot  access 
easement from US 15501 which is to also be the street to the proposed hotel 
to be located behind the Commons Shopping Center.  He stated the easement 
will include a twofoot concrete vertical curb and gutter, which will parallel 
the Aberdeen Commons property line. 

 
Commissioner  Farrell  requested  that  sidewalks  be  installed  on  the 

street  from  the  proposed  hotel  up  to  Starbucks.    Agenda  item  as  New 
Business. 

 
 6.  Personnel Ordinance amendments. 
 

Commissioner  Wright  stated  he  would  like  the  Board  to  consider 
some changes to the Personnel Policy Manual.  He stated the Board needed 
to be looking at ways to curb the spiraling costs of benefits.  He stated there 
seems to be no end in sight for rising health care costs and  he did not see 
how the Town can continue some of  the same policies as  in  the past.   The 
following are areas that were brought up for review: 

 
a.  Page 19:   Vacation accumulated over 240 hours and not  taken as of 

December 31st be transferred to sick leave – 
He suggested this policy be discontinued and all vacation earned and 
not taken in any anniversary year be dropped.  He stated the purpose 
of vacation is for rest, relaxation and being with family and should be 



taken  as  earned.    Also,  consider  whether  to  continue  5  weeks  for 
employees  with  25  years  of  service.  (The  Board  did  not  make  a 
decision) 

 
b.  Page  20:    Employees who  leave without  a  twoweeks  notice  get  no 

accumulated vacation pay – 
He  suggested  discontinuing  this  policy  and  pay  regardless  of 
circumstances.  (The Board agreed with this) 

 
c.  Page 22:  Sick leave/12 days per year with no maximum accumulation 

– He suggested a limit of sick leave to no more than 120 days (approx. 
5 1/3 months) – (The Board did not agree/ To be left as written) 

 
d.  Page 23 and 24:  Section 19 and 20 have contradictory statements on 

leave  earning  capacity.    In  order  to  correct,  strike  out  the  second 
sentence in Paragraph 20 – (The Board agreed) 

 
e.  Page 28:  Education leave at full or part pay for up to 12 months – 

He suggested pay for no more than full pay up to 4 hours per day for 
12 months (The Board agreed) 

 
f.  Page 37:  Items ae:  Suggest eliminating policy in Paragraphs c and d.  

In Paragraph e, eliminate policy on paying for a Medicare supplement 
– (The Board agreed)  (As for c and d, no decision was made) 

 
g.  Page  38:    Longevity  Pay:    Suggest  changing  amount  employee  to 

receive to 3 yrs/$200, 4 yrs/300, 5 yrs/$400, 6 yrs/$500, 7 yrs/$600, 8 
yrs/$700,   9 yrs/$800, 10 yrs/ $900 and leave the rest the same  (The 
Board agreed).  

 
 7.  Repairs to the Depot Building. 
 

Manager Zell informed the Board that Commissioner Wright met with 
the Town’s Building Inspector, Richard Caton, at the Depot to come up with 
an amount to make the needed repairs and possibly add another HVAC unit. 

 
After some discussion, Manager Zell was directed to get a heating/air 

specialist to look at the existing unit and make suggestions on how to make 
the building more energy efficient.  It was also suggested to see if the Town 
could get some financial help from the railroad. 



 
 
  8.  Sandhills Central Model Railroad Club Lease. 
 

Manager  Zell  distributed  to  the  Board  a  diagram  of  the  proposed 
layout for the model train display.   

 
There were some concerns of the Board as to memorabilia not being 

secured as items, in the past, have been taken from the Depot. 
 
  Commissioner Wright  commented  pertaining  to  having  a  Letter  of 

Understanding along with the lease for a meeting area in the Caboose or in 
the Depot. 

      The  consensus of  the Board was  that space  is not  available until 
further notice.  Agenda item as Old Business. 

 
 9.  Future General Fund Project. 
 

Manager  Zell  reviewed  with  the  Board  a  proposed  5Year  Capital 
Improvement  Plan  for  consideration  of  some  of  the  big  ticket  items.    He 
stated there were other things that needed to be added and for the Board to 
consider  other  items  and  need  to  set  a  time  during  the  upcoming  Budget 
Work  Session to look at and discuss some of the bigger projects. 

 
10.  Friends of the Postmaster’s House, Inc. 
 

Mrs.  Faye  Honeycutt,  President  of  the  Friends  of  the  Postmaster’s 
House,  Inc,  asked  the  Board  to  consider  a  donation  of    $5,000.00  in  the 
Town’s upcoming budget.  She stated numerous repairs have been made to 
this  historical  house.    She  stated  there would  be  a plant  sale  fundraiser  in 
April  at  the  Postmaster’s  House  and  asked  that  everyone  come  by  and 
purchase their plants. 

   
The Board then discussed coming up with a contractual agreement for 

the Town of Aberdeen to be able to use the Postmaster’s House for certain 
functions. 

 
 
 
 



11.  Other Business 
 

a.  Resolution  Establishing  Goal  for  Participation  of  Minority 
Business in Building Construction Contracts. 

 
Manager Zell informed the Board that this Resolution is part of 

the  grant  application  for  State  funds  for  the  water  and  wastewater 
infrastructure improvements pertaining to Corneal Science.  He stated 
this Resolution has to be adopted at  this meeting as the deadline for 
submission is March 31st. 
 

A  motion  was  then  made  by  Commissioner  McMurray, 
seconded  by  Commissioner  Wright,  to  adopt  the  Resolution 
Establishing Goal for Participation of Minority Business in Building 
Construction Contracts.  Motion unanimously carried. 

 
  b.  Surplus Property of the Town of Aberdeen. 
 

Manager Zell distributed  to  the Board an updated list of  items 
to  be  declared  surplus.   He  stated  the Board would  need  to  adopt  a 
Resolution declaring items surplus. 

 
Commissioner  McMurray  suggested  to  contact  Bay  of  St. 

Louis/Moore Friends to Mississippi, to see if they could use some of 
these surplus items instead of the Town auctioning them off. 

 
Manager  Zell  stated  the  Town  still  has  to  declare  the  items 

surplus.  The Board  had  no  problem with  this,  but  the  surplus  items 
will  have  to  go  through  the  appropriate  process.     Agenda  item  as 
New Business. 

 
c.  Resolution of Participation in Countywide Summit Process. 

 
Manager  Zell  informed  the  Board  this  is  a  Resolution  of 

participation.   He  stated  it would  be  on  the  agenda  for  adoption  on 
April 12th.  Agenda item as New Business. 
 
 
 
 



d.  Resolution  of  the  National  Incident Management  System  as  the 
Basis for all Incident Management in the Town of Aberdeen. 

 
    Manager  Zell  stated  this  resolution  pertains  to  Homeland 
Security Directive to provide a consistent approach for federal, state, 
local  and  tribal  governments  to  work  together more  effectively  and 
efficiently  to  prevent,  prepare  for,  respond  to  and  recover  from 
domestic incidents, regardless of the cause, size or complexity in the 
process of handling an emergency.   He stated the Board will have to 
adopt in order for the police force and fire department to receive any 
grant money.  Agenda item as New Business.   
 

e.  There will be a 2006 NCLM Regional Meeting in Southern Pines on 
    April 26th   if anyone is interested in attending.     
    

f.  BRAC Task Force Meeting. 
 

Mr.  Hopkins  stated  that  he  is  representing  the  Moore  County 
municipalities  on  the  BRAC’s  Steering  Commission  and  acting 
County Manager, David Cotton, is representing the County.  He stated 
there are two from each of the counties of Moore, Harnett, Hoke and 
Cumberland.    He  stated  this  group will  initially  coordinate with  the  
military  and  local  government’s  contracts,  etc.    He  also  stated  that 
over  9,000  additional  military  personnel  will  be  stationed  at  Fort 
Bragg, plus their families.  He also stated that over the next six years, 
an  additional  9,000  housing  units will  be  needed within  a  onehour 
drive of Fort Bragg. 

 
Mr.  Hopkins  stated  he  will  keep  the  Board  informed  of  upcoming 
meetings.    

 
g.  Commissioner Wright stated  that he  is concerned about  the beach at 

the  lake.   He  stated  the  shoreline has  a  fourfoot drop off  and he  is 
afraid that a small child could easily fall in and drown.   

 
h.  Commissioner  Wright  commented  on  the  amount  of  pay  that  the 

Board  receives  quarterly.    He  stated  he  would  like  to  see  this 
increased  as  it  has  not  been  reviewed  or  increased  in  years.    He 
requested to increase the amount by $200.00 to the Board.   Manager 
Zell  stated  that  other  municipalities  get  paid  much  more  and  he 



suggested  increasing  the  quarterly  amount  the  Commissioners  will 
receive  to  $700.00  and  $900  to  the  Mayor.    The  consensus  of  the 
Board was in agreement.  Agenda item as New Business. 

 
i.  Mayor Mofield read a letter she received from Mr. William Brown of 

his concerns of  the violation of Town Ordinance for a resident having 
too many dogs which appear unhealthy and are infected with mange.  
Mr. Brown states this is in the proximity of his rental house and he is 
concern for the health and safety of his tenants.  Mr. Brown also had 
some  concerns  about  junked vehicles  located near  his  property.   He 
has  asked  that  these  problems  be  addressed.      Mayor  Mofield   
directed these items to Mr. Hopkins for review and action. 

 
j.  Mayor  Mofield  had  a  resident  in  Woodgreen  Subdivision  call 

concerning the apartment complex below his house stating there is too 
much loud music coming form the apartments and the vehicles.   

 
Mr. Hopkins  is  to  look  into  this matter  and  talk  to  the owner of  the 
apartments.  The Board also discussed placing speed bumps on streets 
in this subdivision as a test area. 
 

12.  Adjourn 
 

With  no  further  business,  a  motion  was  made  by  Commissioner 
Parker,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Farrell,  to  adjourn  the Work  Session.  
Motion unanimously carried. 

 
 
 
___________________________      _________________________ 
Nancy M. Matthews, Town Clerk      Elizabeth B. Mofield, Mayor 


